CLAYTON TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
MARCH 25, 2025, 6:00 P.M.
CLAYTON TOWNSHIP HALL
Kevin DePottey Jon Mieczkowski
Corey Potter George Sippert
Rick Caruso Richard Derby

Kathleen Notrris

TED HENRY, ZONING ADMINISTRATOR, #810-691-5258
PLEDGE TO THE FLAG

ROLL CALL

APPROVE PROPOSED AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: FEBRUARY 25, 2025 Pgs. 2-3
COMMUNICATION:

REPORT OF OFFICERS AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR:
COLE CREEK ESTATES

PUBLIC COMMENT:

NEW BUSINESS / DISCUSSIONS
1. Rental Ordinance Pgs. 4-22

OLD BUSINESS / DISCUSSIONS
ADDITIONAL ITEMS

FUTURE ITEMS

1. Business License

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

1age |



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF CLAYTON
PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
FEBRUARY 25, 2025
Chairman DePottey opened the meeting af 6:00 p.m.

ROLL CALL

Members Present: Rick Caruso, Richard Derby, Jon Mieczkowski, Kevin DePottey, Kathy
Norris, Corey Potter

Members Absent: George Sippert

Others Present:

Ted Henry/Building Official, Zoning Administrator
Ken Tucker/Township Attorney

APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA

Action Taken: Motion by Potter, supported by Derby, to approve the proposed agenda
for the February 25, 2025, Clayton Township Planning Commission meeting.

MOTION CARRIED.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 28, 2025

ACTION TAKEN: Motion by Mieczkowski, supported by Caruso to approve minutes of
January 28, 2025.

MOTION CARRIED.

COMMUNICATION:

None

REPORT OF OFFICERS AND ZONING ADMINISTRATOR:

Ted Henry, the Zoning Administrator noted a company called looking to buy property
for a new cell tower at Beecher Road and N. Morrish Road area

PUBLIC COMMENT:

None

Y9¢ &



NEW BUSINESS/DISCUSSIONS:
Continued discussions on proposed rental ordinance

Zoning Administrator, Ted Henry, called for election of officers for new year. Opened
call for nominations. Nomination by Caruso to keep existing officers, 2nd by Potter

Zoning Administrator, Ted Henry, call 2 more times for nominations — ho more followed
Now a motion by Caruso and 2nd by potter to keep existing officers

Action Taken: Motion by Caruso, supported by Potter to keep existing officers. Roll Call
Vote: 6 Yes/O No

OLD BUSINESS/DISCUSSIONS

ADDITIONAL ITEMS

FUTURE ITEMS

A short discussion on the new proposed business license
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS

ADJOURNMENT

Action Taken: Motion by Norris, supported by Potter, to adjourn the Planning
Commission meeting at 6:18 p.m.

Kevin DePottey, Chairperson Kathy Norris, Secretary

93



Byiliding Depaitment
810,635,454
~ $10,635,2887-tax
fkey@dityofswartzeraakiorg

¢

Whate Friehtiships Last Forever:

Rental Property Address: . . . Aptit__

For multiple units uncler common ownership; common‘management; AND-Jocated on a common-
premises, please Include additional unit:information. below or attach a Nst of &l units by address and
number for larger complexes.

Bg er‘ hame: ,
Owner's acldress (No PO Boxes):

City: C Stater __ZIps.
Telephone number: ( Y : 4 =
Cell # (

) . EMAIL:

Owner's Agent's name: ___

Agentls Address:
Agent’s telephone number; ( ) = -
Offlce~number: ) - __._Emergency 24-hr. number: ( ) .

unlk2:____ Unlt3: Unlt4:_____ Unit5:

___Unit6:_____Unit7:_ ... Unit8:
Amount Enclosed ($75 for flrst unit, and $20 for adtlitional qualifying units on premises)i ..

g 1 vt 7

oy e by

. Tn compliance with MCL 125,526 the owner permits inspections of their rente propertios by offipials or agonts
of the City and affitms that all tonants of the subject propertios have baen informed of the regulations contained
in this article and of inspections of the rental properties, including comnion areas; by avthorized City officials.
The owner shall notify their tenant of a request by the City o inspect a rental property, and owner shall make.a
good-faith effort to obtain consent for an inspection, and if ihe owner obtalng consent foran inspection, arange
inspection by City officials or agents, If a tenant refuses an inspection from the City and then vacates before an
ingpection can occur, the owner. of the leasehold shall wotify the enforoing ngency within 10 days after the
loased propexty 1s vacated. . '

s e e irmam L p masem s sepizies

Owner or Legal Representative Date

[StringJursdistion Address) (String. Jurladictlon City), [stingJurldiction,State] [String.Jul dictlnn.-’z_'lﬂ

wiww.Gityofswartzereek.org
Peitad on [DataTime,Systom, Todny:iM/ddyyyy] 2




Rental Inspection Report

ATE: | o Tmer . Inspactor: e R
ENTIFICATION:
roperty Address .
lame of Property Owner
roperty Owier Address
Jty/Statée/ZIp .
thone . o Cell,
T R R e ST R T i i
R AR S R
‘.l-..'..-' ]'Ekﬁ .!i 'ﬁl}ld.mr‘i\’r‘iﬁ?' f}}‘ T».JL (3 ‘rﬂ '\\Jrﬂwg&@ I!L%t ‘J% .’:: Jtﬂ'v\af}\"hl{i "'.': E ;'.M‘L.h JB‘J[&J‘ i\ } Y f ‘g M"t 'ﬁ <f .'Lt!. ':‘1.5{‘; '
eterior: ‘
2.1 Sanitation, | V/N/NA ,
02.2 Grading and dralnage. Y/ N/NA
02,3 Sidewalls. and driveways. Y/ N/ NA )
102:4 Weeds, : Y./ N/NA
102.7 Accessdry structures, Y/ N/NA
102.8 Motor va’h_li:les. . Y/ N/NA
108.1 Swimming pools. ' Y/ N/NA
J04.8 Premises ldentification Y/ N/NA
1044 Structural members Y/ N/NA
04,5 Foundatlon walls Y/ N/NA
304.6 Exterior walls _ ALY NA |
304.7 Roofs and dralnage, Y/ N/ NA ' f T
304,10 Stalrways, decls, porehes Y/ N NA S o
304,11 Chimneys and towers Y/ N/NA
304,12 Handralls and guards, Y/ N/ NA
304.18 Window glazing Y/ N/NA S
‘304,14 Ihsect SCraens, Y/ N/NA ' ' ,
804,15 Doors. s o NINNA T o
604.3 Electrical systent huzards. _ Y/ N/NA '

Additional commants:




Bedroom:

805,56 Interlor doors,

¥/ N/ NA

(304.18 Window.glazing Y/ N/ NA _
304,14 Insect siraans: Y/ NJNA T
Sﬂﬁ.S’interior.surfacéé. Y/ N/NA
3054 Walking surfaces, Y/ N./NA
305.6 Interlor doors, Y/ N/ NA
0081 Infestation, ¥/ N/ NA
‘504.3.‘El-ectrlc_al system hazardsy, Y/ N./NA
?'64.2:Sn1ol<e alarms, . ‘ Y/ N./ NA‘
‘Additional comments: ' T
: t : P
Bathroom! E |
304,14 Insect screens, Y/ N/ NA
304,15 Window glazing Y/ N/ NA
3058 Interlor surfaces, Y/ N/NA
305.4 Walking surfaces, Y/ N/ NA
208.1 Infestation Y/ N/NA .0
502 Requlyed Facillties
-Bath tub-present, B ¥/ N NA
~-\Water closetyresent Y/ N/ NA
«Lavatory present Y/ NINA
505 Water system '
~ leaks Y/ N/NA
«~hot water Y/ N/ NA
«-gold.wator Y/ N/NA
604.9 Electrical system hazards, Y/ N/NA
Additional comments:
Living Roonn: o
T T el ety
304,14 Insact screens. Y/ N/NA
305.8 Interlot surfaces, v/ N/NA
805.4 Walling surfacels. Y/ N/NA




|- 8081 Infestation, T Y/ N/NA

| 604.8 Blectrical systam hazards, Y/ N/NA
Addltlonal coinments: )

Kitchen:

30448 Window giazing Y/ N /NA
304.14 |ns;ac't screans, Y/ N/NA
{ 805.3 Interlor sirfacs, Y/ N/NA
['805.4 Walldng surfaces, ¥/ N/NA
305.6 Interlor doors, Y/ N/ NA - _ _
[507.1 Rubblsh or garbage Y/ N/NA “ .
| 808,21 Infestation, V/N/NA
1 A04.7 »Foo.d preparation
' « Refrigarntor present Y/ N/NA
502 Reduired Facllities |
. - Kitchen sink present Y/ N/NA
505 Water';g;ystem | )
- feaks o Y/ NS NA
~hot water Y/ N/NA _
wcold water ‘ -
6043 Electrlcal system hazards, Y/ N/NA

Additlonal comments:

Laundry Room:

| 504,13 Window glazing VI N/ NA
| 304.14 Insbct sereens, . Y/ N/ NA

305.5 Interlor surfaces. Y N/NA
305.4 Walling surfaces. v/ N/ NA
“805,6 Intorlor doors. Y/ N/NA
308.1 Infestatlon, Y/ N/NA

403,5 Clothes dryer exthaust, Y/ N/ NA l
604.8 Electrical system hazards, Y/ N/ NA




Addltional commants:'

pining Room:
804,13 Window glazig ¥/ N7NA

| 804.24 Insoct sereens, \7i N/NA
305.8 Interlor surfaces. Y/ N/NA
305.4 Walling surfaces, YPNINA

305,6 Intetlor doors:

Y/ N/NA

3081 Infestation. ¥/ N /NA

604:3 Flectiical system hazards, v/ N./NA

Additional cohmanfs": T T

N

Basement N
'B_Oél.ii Stl'ugt;_n_'ai memir_;ers | Y/ N/NA i
"304.5 Foundation walls ¥/ N/NA v

304,16 Basement hatchways, Y/ N/NA e

3055 Handralls and guards, Y/ N/NA

305,6 Intarlor doors, Y/ N/ NA:

307 Rubbsh rgarboge Y/ N/NA

308.1 infastation. ' © ¥/ N/NA

40,5 Clothes dryor exhaust, TV/NINA

604.3 Electyical systam hazards, Y/ N /NA

7042 Smoke alarms, Y/ N / NA

Addlitional comments:

Hallway/Stalrway
3053 Interlor surfaces, Y/ N/NA

ﬁ?.US.&WnIldngsuffaces. . ' V/ N /NA




{305_.5' Handralls and guards, Y/ N_/"-N,‘A _
“305,6.Intarior dours, Y/ NSNA
308.1Infestation, v/ NINA
504, Electrical systom ha'zarc.ls. v/ N /NA
704:2 Smoke alarnis, B Y N/ NA
Additlonal commentst ' |
Equipment;
505.4-Wator heating facllities. Y/ N/ NA
602.3 Heat supply. 7 Y/ N/WNA
6031 Mechanlcal appliances. Y/ N.JNA
604.3 Electrical system haards, Y/ N/ NA

Additional comments:

\

f-!




CITY. OF SWARTZ CREEK
-ORDINANGE :NO..421

An ordinance to amend Chapler 4 of the Gotle of Ordinances to add lhierelo a new
Artlcls IV for Ingpactions. of yental properties,

THE GITY OF 8WARTZ CREEK ORDAINS:

Soction 1. Amendment of Chapter 4 of the Codo of Ordinances of the Clty of
Swartz Creek.

Chaptéi.4 of the Gode of Ordinances of the Clty of Swartz Creek [s:hereby

P amended to add thereto a.new Article 1V entitled: "Rental Propetty Inspactions" to read

as follows: ,
. ARTICLE IV, RENTAL PROPERTY INSPECTIONS
8¢c, 4-31,  Purpose of standards.

The clty recognizes a compelling interest in -establishing standards. for the
malntenance of sanitary and safe regidential rental structures in the city” as -an impditant:
factor for the general health, safety and welfare of all of its cltizens, This -article is.deslghed
to promote the continued malntenance of quality and safe rental propeities and to enhance
and maintain Property values,

This Eticle supplements and augments the existing International Property

Maintenance Code in protecting and promoting the health, safety and- welfare of the

citizens of the Clty of Swaitz Creek by requiring the ragistration of all rental dwelling units
in the clty, This reglstration, combined with regu’lar~systelmatic=1l'nspectiona. will help pievent
overcrowding, the incldence: of communicable diseases, and will aid in the enforcement
of the International Properly Malntenance Code, which sets minimum alfowable standards
for adeguate malntenance of habltable dwellings. This article (s notintended nor-ghall it
b used for the purpose of including the clty: in oVl disputes?between rental owners and
tenants. lnvolving, but not limited 1o, non-payment of rent, evictions and/of par.sonaﬂ.

disputes.
Boc, 432, Definltions,

"Dwelling unit" means a building, or portion thereof, designed for oceupancy for
living purposes and having cooking facilitles and sanitery faclilities, Including single family

residences. -

"Landlord” means any person-who owns. o oontrols o dwelling; Dwelling Unit, of
Rental Unit and rerits such unlt, either personally or fhrough -a desighated agent, to any’
person. _

"Owner" means the legal title holder of a Rental Unit or the Premi

as within: which
the Rental Unit Is situated. 7

"Rental unit® means any Dwelling Unit or & unit containing sleeping quarters,




including but not limited o hotels, motels; bed and breakfast astablishments, boarding
houses, slaaping rovins, residential, commerdial or industrial :property, Including stryctures
which are leasad or rented by the Owner of othel Person I wohtrol «of ‘stich units, to

any tenant, whathar by.day, week, month, year or any other term, eXoept for jails, hospilals,

nursing homes, convalescent homes, foster homes or temporary: group shelters provided
by legal nonprofil agencles which &ré Inspected; ceitified and/or fisensed bythe state.

Sed. 4-33, Reglstration.

An Owner or Landlord shall reglster their Rental. Unit at least once. every: three
years, In accordance with the applicable inspaction oycle, as follows:

(1) All existing Rental Unlts ‘shall be. registered within ninety (90) days of the
affective date of this. ordinance,

(2) Al newly construgted Rental Units shall be regisléred priar to any use of
ocoypansy as a rental dwelling unit,

(3) A new Owner or Landlord shall reglster a Rental Unit, which. is gold, transferced
or conveyad, within thirly (30 days of the date: of the closing of such sale,
transfer or conveyance,

IEN
.. (&) Al existing nonsrental dwelling -units, which aré converted to Rental Units,
. shall be registered prior to the date on which the property lsfirst oceupled for
" rental purposes, '

S00,4.34,  Applications.

Applications for registration shall be made In such form: and In acoordance with
suich Instrictions as rhay be provided by the building inspector designated by-the city
manager end shall include atleast the following information:

(1) The neime, address and telephone.number of the:Pwner-and/or Landlord (1o
post office box shall-be acoepted). .

(2) The name, address and telephone number of the Owher's. reptesentative, If
the rental property owner has opted to appoint a. representative, This
representative must be located within 40 miles of the premises.

(3) Upon registration, the Owhner shall be responsible for.notlfying the bullding
inspector of -any change of address -of sither the: Owner or Owner's
representative, :

Included with the registration application shall be an agreement, signed by the
Owner, permitling inspections of his/her rental properties by officlals or agents-of the ity
and affiiming that all tenants of the subject proparties:have been. informed of the
régulations contained inthis article and.of Inspections of the rental propaities, including
common areas, by authotizet City officlals, All leases executed after the effective date \ ‘

of thig article shall contaln a provision requiring thetenant(s) to sonsentiogughinspaction
upon notice-as provided In this article, ‘ . e,




~ Anauthorized City official may, with written nollcs, require additional’ Information
of any or all registrants Inorder to reasonably further the purposes of this Atticle,

~ Avthe time of ragistration of fhe Rental Unit;, there wiil ba a prescribed fee for
registration and the' Initial Inspection, as adopted by resolution..Any unpald registration
fees shall become a lien-on the property immediately and. collécted: as an assessment
putsiiantto clty ordinance. '

Béc, 436,  Inspections,
The bullding official shall cause a periodic ingpection t6. be.méde of every Rental

Uhilt at least once every three years, with more frequent ingpections:for Rental Units that
are found to have deficlencies, sald Inspaction frequency to be In accordance with the.

* procedural rules adopted by the city councll, 8uch Inspeation shaltiinclude a thorougly.

examination of all parts of such Rental Unitand the premisas cohnected therewlth;

The Owher shall be notifled of tha date and time of a-rental inspection via flrst class
mall at least 30 days priot to the inspection date. Owners shall be required to provide all
notices of Inspgation to the'tenant(s) as required by law..

Any Rental Unlt, even though not previously scheduled for inspection, may be
Inspected without prior notice to the. Owner and/or teriant If an authorlzed olty officlal has
probable cause to belleve that there exists-on the property any condition which niakes it
or'any portion thereof stibstandard ot unsafe, or there Is.evidence that a violation of a
cq{ie may exist, .

_ Ifaceeks to a-structure, premises orarea for the. putpose:of inspection authotized
by this section Is refused, an authorized city official, upon showing thet probable cause
exists for the Inspection and for the Issuance of an order directing compliance with:the:
inspection requirements of this article with respect to such rental dwelling or rental unit;
may petition and obtain such order from & courtwhich has jurlsdiction,

Exceptfor probable cause inspections, a Rental Unltmay only be Inspected during:
remsonable hours upon presetitation of proper identiflcation Wy an-authorized eity offlolal.

Sac, 4-36, Standards.
The standards used to determing Rental Unit and Dwelling Unit sompliance with

clty codes and ordinances shall be the Internatlonal Property Maintenance Code, as
adopted and amended by the clty council,

The building officlal Is hereby empowered to make such rules and regulations as.
shall be ngcessary. for-the enforcement of thils article, subject, however, to the approval. .

of the clty councll, When the rules and regulations iade undor thls airticle have been
adopted and promulgated by the building officlal and approved by the city councll, they

shall be desmed to be as complete and binding a part of the article as if such Tules werg

spocifically set forth In this article, The violation of any: of such regulations so adopted
ahall ba deemed a violatlon of this article. Coples of'such rules and tegulations shall be

placed on file in the office of the city clerk for inspection by interested partles at any-g

rsasonabletime. e'

8ac, 437, Noncompliance with code,.




. Violationsmotimminently dangerous, Upon ingpection:hy an-authorized city officlal,

if & violatlon of & code. Is-discoverad; but the Violation Is dasivied by the officlal not to be
immediately dangerous to health, welfare or safety, a violalion notice shall be-issuad:to
{he owner. The ownar shallbe advised ofthe time period to;correct the violation.

Violations-that threaten life, imb o property. If upon Inspection of a-rental property
the authorized oity officlal determines that a violation Is-of such serlous nature so as to
Immediately thireaten the health, safety or welfare ofthe publio orthe ocoupants thereof;
the officlal shall demand that i violation(s) be corrected irimedlately and/or the rental
properly be vacated mmediately.

Sac. 4438, Notices,

~ The building Inspactor shall lssu@ a wiltten report In aiccordance with Section: 107
of the Intermational Propetly Maintenance Coda, noting any violations of this article or any
ather provislon of the clly's ordinances and shall provide a copy of the reporl to-the owher
or owher's reprasentative,

The building inspector shall direct the owner of owner's representative. fo carect

_ violations within the time set forth In the report, A reasonable time for coirecting violations

shall be detertined by the bullding Inspector i light of the ‘nature-of the violations and all
relevant alroumstances, which shall not excaed sixty (60) days, unless correction of the
vioation within ‘a-60-clay period Is Impossible due to seasonal considarations.

Upon fequest of the person responsible for corracting Violations, the bullding

inspector may extend the time for correcting violations, but.not 1o, exceed an additional
thirty (30) days.

Re-nspeciions of a rental property shall aceur on the date speclfied on the violation
notice, or sooner If requested by-the owner and ulty schedullng permits such inspection,
it shall be the owner's responsibliity to coordinate the access to all areas of thelr rental
propertles. A fee as established by resolution of the Clty Opuncll shall be charged for
each re-inspastion after the first re-napection, : '

Sec, 4439,  Violations.

A violation. of any provision of this ordinance shall-be punished as-a tunicipal clvll
(hfraction, subject to fines and costs identifled In Section 1-21 of Artlele 1l of the Clly of
Swartz -Creek Code of Ordinances, E

~ Any structure not In compliance with this article. s desmed & nulsance per se,

The bullding Inspector, buliding -official, code enforcement officer and any other
person designated by the: city manager ls hereby deslgnated -as the authotlzed individual

{o lssue municipal ¢lvil Infeaction citations or putsue any other lawfal remedy for violations

of this Artlcle,

in addilion 1o ahy penalties: imposed by law; upon ‘_a"-fiﬁding of resp.cnsﬁbilliy by the
court for a violation of this Article, the Clty may immediately- revoke the reglstration and
order the Immediate eviction of all persons and property upon. the. prenilses untjil a




cerfificate: of-compliance s Issyed: by fhe cily.

8eo, 4440, Fees, _ c

The Gly shall, by resolution, astablish the fees for reglstration: and Inspections of
Rental Upits and the City Clerk shall make the fee schadule avallable to the publie durlng
reguilar office Houis, Ay, unpald Inspection fees’ shall become @ llen on the properly arid
collected as delinquent properly. taxes. as sllowed by law..

Bec. 441,  Appeals,

Any person aggileved by an order or deolsion of any official charged with the
enforcement of {his Arficle. may ‘appeal that order or declsion 1o the clty. councli provided
that appeal s takan no later than twentfy (20) days from the daté of the order ‘or degislon
belng appealed. The appellant shall file with. the. officlal from ‘whose deolslon such appeal
Is taken and with the olty olerk, a notlee of appeal specifying the ground therefor. The
offlclal froin whom the appeal Is taken shall forthwith transmit to the oty clork.a summery
report of all previous action” taken. The clily councll may :at ifs discretlon, call upon. the
offlelal- from whom the appwal is taken, o explain his/her action. The final disposition of
such appesl shall be. In the form of a resolution wither reversing, modifylng or affiming,
wholly ot partly, the decision or the determination appealed from. To this end, the clty
souricll shall have all the. powers of the. official from whom the appeal fe taken.

B’é;c. 442,  Hearings.

" The oty councll actihg as the board of appeals shall fix a reasonable time for the
hearing -of thd. appeal and. give due notlee thereof 1o Interested parties and decide the
same within a reasonable time.

Sec. 4-43,  Cost,

The cost of the-demolition, making the bullding. 8afe, or of malntaining the exterlor
of the bullding of structure or grounds adjolning the bullding o structure, Tnourred by the
city to bring the property Into compliance with this article shall-be reimbursed {o the city
by the owner or party In Interest in whose name the property appears, '

Sec. 444,  Lien,

The owher or party In Interest In whose name the propelty appears upon the last
local tax assessment records shall be notified by the assessor of the amount of the-costs
of the demolition, making the building safe, or of malntaining theexterior of the bullding,
structure or grounds adjolning the bullding or structure: by flrst olass: mall at the address: _
 shown.on the racords, Ifthe owner or party In Interest falls to pay the gosts within 30.days .

after malling by the assessor of the notice of the- amount of the cost fo the city, the cily
shall have a llen for the cost Incurred fo Hring the property into gonformance with this
article, The llen for the ovst shall be collected and treated I the same manner as provided
for properly tax flens under the general property tax act, Act No, 208 of the Public Acts of ' q

Michlgan of 1893 (MCL 211.1 ef seq.), &s amended. rVQg e'
Sec, 448,  Separate legal action; judgment.




In addition to olher rermadles under this article;thé city may-biltig an action agalist
the owner of the bullding or structure for the fill cost of the demolition, of malking e .
huilding.safe, or of maintalning the extetlor-of the building or slrushte or grouiids adjoining
the bullding. or sfructure, The city shall have a llen pn the property for the amount of @

Judgment obtalied pursuant to this. seotion, The lien provided for In this section: shall not

take-effoct untll notice ‘of the llen Js filed orrecorded as provided by law.
Section 2.  Effective Date,

This Ordinance shall take éffecl 30 days following publication,
At a regular meeting of the Gity Councll of Swartz Creek held on the. 13th day of July,
2015; Counclimember Gilbert moved for adoption of. the foregoing  ordinance and
Countilmembaer Shumaker supported the: motion. '
Voting for,  Porath, Shumaker, Abrams, Gllbert, Micks, Kiueger; Pinkston,
Voting against: Norie,

' The Mayor declared the. ordinance. adopted.

W

Yq

David Krueger
Mayor

Ir.f

Juanita Aguilar
Clty Cletk
CERTIFICATION

The foregoing s a true copy of Ordinarice. No, 421 which was enacted by the Swartz
Graek Clly- Council at a regular meeting held on the 13th day of July, 20185,

'J.uéln!la_- Aguilar"" o :
| £ - R

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that fhe following forms;. #s:inchided fn the July 13,
2015 clty councll packet, shall he hereby incorporated Into the rental Inspection

121




program of the Glty-of Swarlz Creek, with future fees: subject to fggolution by tiie
¢ity counoll:

Rental Reglstration & Inspection Ptocadural Ruleé 8. Policles
Oceupant Information Form.

Rental Reglstration FForm

Rental Inspaction Certificate of Compllance

Rental Inspection Report

Rental: Reglstration Letter

Flowcharl of Rental Registration Process

YES: Porath, Shumaker, Abtams, Gilbert, Hicks, Kiuegor; Pinkston.
NO: Nene. Motion Declared Carrled,

4

f-J‘




ARTICLE {V. ~RENTAL PROPERTY INSPECTIONS.

Foolnotes:

g (3) il

Ediltor's note— Qrd, No, 421, §1,.adopled July 13, 2015, set out provislons adding Art. 1V, §§ 4-37 445, To predervé the. ~
oxlsling §§ 4-31—4-33 (Art,.lif), and at the edltor's dlscretion, gald. provislons have beén Included tereln ag At IV, §§ 41 =4-
58,

Sec, 4-41, - Purpose:of standards.

The city recognizes a compelling Interest in astablishing standards-for the maintenance of sanitary and safe
residential rental structures In the clty as an Important factor for the genetal health; safety and welfare-of all
of its citizens. This article Is deslgned to promote the continued:malntenance of quality and safe rental
properties.and to enhance and malntain property values. :

This article supplements and augments the existing International Property Maintenarice Code in protec‘_tifng
and promoting the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the City-of Swartz Creek by requh Ing the
reglstration of all rental dwelling units in the city, This reglstration, combihed with regular systematlc

.Inspections, will help prevent overcrowding, t the Incldence of compmunicable diseases, and will alcl In the
enforcement of the International Property Maintenahice Codg, which sets'minimum allowable, standards for
adequate malntenance of habltable dwellings, This article Is not intended nor shall it be used for thé purpose
of including the clty in clvil disputes between rental owners and tenants involving, but not IImILed to, non-
payment of rent,‘vevlctions and/or personal’ disputes.

In accordance with MCL 125.526(4)(d), Inspections shall be conducted-on a compliance basis; underwhich-a
premises brought Into compliance with this section will be Issued a certificate of compliance that s good for a
perlod of three years, unless a complaint is made to the City of Swartz Créek bullding Inspector,

(Ord, No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15; Ord, No. 450, § 1, 9-14-20) v

Sec, 4-42, - Définltions,

Dwelling unit means a building, or portion thereof, deslgned for.occupancy for living purposes and having
cooking facilities and sanitary facilities, Including single family residences.

Landlord means any person who owns or controls a dwelling, dWelilng’d}lit, ot rental unit and renits'such
unlt either personally or through a deslgnated agent to any person..

owner means the Iegal title holder of a rental unjt or the premises wlthln whlch the rentaE unlt Is situated,

Rental unit means any dwelling unit or a unit containing sleeping'quartcrs, including but not limited to
hotels, motels, bed and breakfast establishments, boarding houses, sleeping rooms, residentlal, commercial
or industrial property, including structures Which are leased or rented by the owner or-other personin contro!

vage [

1‘22 4, 7320 PM

aboutiblank P Gkt
aga 1 ¢




of such unlts, to any tenant, whether by-day, weel; month, year or any ather term, except. for jalls, hospitals,
nursing homes, canvalescent homes, foster homes or temporary group shelters:provided by legal nonprofit
agencles which are Inspected, certified and/or licensed by the state;

(Qrd. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-43, - Registration,

An owner or landlord'shall register their rental unit at least.once every three.years, in accordance with the
applicable inspectlon cycle, as follows:

(1) All existing rental units shall be registered within 90 days of the effectlve date of the ordinance
from which this article derived,

(2) All newly constructed rental-units shall be registered prior to any use or occupancy as a.rental
dwelling unit, ’

(3) Anew owrier or landlord shall register a rerital unit, which Is:sold, transferred or conveyed,
within 30 days of the date of the:¢losing of such sale, transfer or conveyance.

(4) All existing non-rental dwelling units, which are converted to rental units, shall be registered
prior to the-date on which the property s first occupled for rental purposes.

(Ord. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15) ]

Y
Sec, 4-44, - Applications,

Applications forregistration shall bemade in such form and in accordance with such instructions as may
be provided by the building Inspector designated by the clty mahager and shall Include at least the following
Information:

(1) The name, address and telephone number of the owner.and/or landlord (no post office box
shall be accepted),

(2) The name, address and telephone number of the ‘ownerv!s- representatlve, If the rental property.
owner has opted to appoint a representative, This representative must be located within 40
miles of the premises.

(3) Upon feglstration, the owner shall be responsible for notifying the. bullding.inspector of any
change of address of elther-the owner.or owner's representative,

Included with the reglstration application shall be an agreéement, slgned by the owner, permitting
Inspections of his/her rental properties by officlals or agents of the city and affirming that: all tenants of the

subject propertles have been informed of the regulatlons contalned in this article-and of inspectlons of the
rental propertles, Including common areas, by authorized clty officlals, All leases executed after the effective
date of this article shall contain a provislon requiring the tenant(s) to consent to. such Inspection upon.notice

as provided in this article, ; 9@ ' g

abautbiank 1(1[?2,‘"4 7220 PM
Paga 1 of &




An authorized clty official may, with writteri notice, require additional information-of any or all reglstrants
in orderto reasonably further the purposes of this article, '

At the time of reglstration of the rental unlt, there will be a prescribed fee for registration and the Initlal
Inspection, as.adopted by resolution. Any unpald reglstration fees shall become:a lien on the property
immediately and collected-as an assessnent pursuant to city ordinance.

(Ord, No, 421, § 1, 7+13-15)

Sec, 4-45. - Inspections.

The bullding official shall cause a periodic Inspection to be, made.of every rental'unlt at least once-every
three years, Such Inspectlon shall Include a thorough examination of all parts of such rental unit. and the
premises connected-therewith,

The owner shall be notified of the daté and time of a rental Inspection:via first.class:mail at least 30 days
prior to the Inspection date. Owners shall be required to provide all-notices:of Inspectioin to the tenant(s)as
required by law.

Any rental unit, even though not previously scheduled for Inspectlon, may be Inspected with prior notice to
_the owner and/or tenant If an authorlzed city officlal has probable cause to belleve that there. exlsts an the.
property any condition which-makes it or any portlon thereof substandard orunsafe; or there Is evidence that

a violation of a code may exlst.

'y

If access to a qtructure, premises or area for the purpose of Inspection authorized by this:section Is
refused, an authotized clty official, upon showing that probable cause exlsts for the Inspection and for the
lssuance of an order directing compliance with the inspection requirernents of this‘article with respect to such
rental dwelling or rental unit, may petition and obtain such orderfrom a court.which. has jurisdiction.

Except for probable cause Inspections, a rental unlt may only be inspected during reasonable hous and
upon presentation of proper identification by.an authorized clty offlc[g!

No notice of Inspection requirement exists to the ownier/tenant of the rental unit If an- emergency exlsts.
Including but not limited to, fire, flood, or other threat of serlous Injury or death, the owner may enter at any

time,

(Ord. No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15; Ord. No, 450, § 1, 9-14-20)

Sec, 4-46, - Standards.

(a) The standards used to determine rental unit and dWe!llng unit compliance wlth clty codes and
ordinances‘shall-be the International Property Malntenance-Code,. as adopted, and amended by the.
city coundl,

(b) The bullding offlclal Is hereby empowered to make such rulés and regulations as shall-be necessary

for the enforcement of this article, subject, however, to the approval of the c;tvcouncll When the

7 kgl 3V

aboutiblank
Pag 3701 &




rules and regulations made under this article have been adopted and. promulgated by the bullding
official and approved by the city council, they shall be deenied to bé as complete-and binding a part
of the article as If such rules were.specifically set forth,in this:article. The violation of any of such
regulations so adopted shall be deemed a violation of this article: Coples of such rules and
regulatlonis shall be placed on:filein the office of the clty clerl for Inspection by Interested partjes
at.any-reasonable time.. ;

(Qrd. No. 421, §1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-47, - Noncompllance with code,

() WViolations not imminently dangerous, Upon Inspectlon hy an authorized city offlcral If a violation of

a code Is discovered, but the violation Is deemed by the officlal not to be Immediately dangerous to
health, welfare or safety, a violation notlce shall be Issued.to the owner. The ownét shall be advised
of the time period to correct the violation,

(b) Violations that threaten life, imb or property, If upon inspection of a rental property the authorlzed

wcity officlal determines that.a violation is of suth serlous nature.so as to Immediately threaten the

health, safety or welfare of the publicor the occupants: thereof, the officlal 'shall demand that the
violatlon(s) be corrected Immediately and/or the rental property be vacated immediately,

(Qrd, No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

N

\
Sec, 4-48. - Notlces.

.(a)

(b)

©)

(d).

The bullding inspector shall Issue a written report'in accordance with section 107 of the
International Property Malntenance Code, noting-any viglations:of this artlcle-or any other pravislon
of the-city's ordinances and shall provide a copy of the repart to the owner ot ewner's
representative,

The bullding Inspector shall direct the owner or.owner's representative to correctviolations within
the time-set forth in the report. A reasonable time for corregting violations shall be determ[ned by
the bullding Inspector In light of the nature of the violatlons-and all relevant clrcumstances. which
shall not exceed 60 days, unless correction of the violation withina 60-day perlod s Impossible due
to seasonal considerations.

Upon request of the person responsible for correcting violations, the bullding Inspector may extend
the time for correcting violations, but not to exceed an additional 30 days.

Re-inspections of a rental property shall occur.on the date specified on the violatiori notice, or

Inspection, 4
(Qrd, No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15) ‘ qu &0

aboubiblank

__soonerIf-requested-by-the-owner-and-cltyscheduling: permits-such-Inspaction-Itshall-bethe-

owner's responsibility to coordinate the access to all areas of thelr rental propertles. A fee as
established by resolution of the city councll shall be charged for each re-Inspection after the flrst re-

10/22/24; T120PM
Pogodaf §




Sec, 4-49, - Vjolatlons,

() Aviolatlon of any provision.of this article shall be punished.as-a municipal clvi Infraction;:subject to,
flnes and costs-Identified in section 1-21 of artlcle Ii of the City of'Swartz Creek:Code of Ordinances.

(b) Any structure not in compliance with this article Is deemed a nulsance per-se. !

(c) The building inspector, building, officlal, code enfortement officer and any other pérsan designated
by the city manager Is hereby, deslgnatecl as the authorized Individual to Issue: runicipal.civil
Infraction citations or pursue:any-other lawful remedy for violatipns-of this article.

(d) In additlonto any penaltles Imposed by law, upon a finding of responsibllity by the court for a,
violation of this article, the city may immediately revoke the reglstration and order the immediate
eviction of all pérsons and property upon the premises.untila certificate of compliange s Issued by
the city.

(Ord. No. 421, 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-50, - Fees,

The clty shall, by resolution, establish the fees for reglstration and Inspections of reftal units and the city
. clerk shall make the fee schedule avallable to the public durlng regular. office hours. Any unpaid Inspection
fees shall become a llen on the property and: collected as dellhguent property taxes as“allowed by law,

(Qtd,,Ng.AzL §1,7-13-15)

-‘

Sec, 4-51. - Appeals

Any person aggrieved by an order of decislon af any officlal charged with the enforcement:of this article
may appeal that order or decislon to the city councll provided that-appeal is taken no laterthan 20 days from
the date of the order or decision: being appealed. The appellant shall file with the officlal from whose declslon
such appeal Is taken and with the city clerk, a notice of appeal specifyjng the ground therefor, The officlal from

| Wwhom the appeal Is taken shall forthwith transmit to the clty clerk & summary report of dll previous action

i taken, The city councll may at Its-discretion call upon the officlal from whom the appeal Is taken, to-explain
his/her action, The final disposition of such appeal shall be in the form of a resolution eltherreversing,
modifylng or affirming, wholly or partly, the.decislon or the determination appealed from. To'thls end, the city
coundil shall have all the powers of the officlal from whom the appeal is taken.,

(M§171315)

Sec, 4-52. - Hearl'ngs.

The clty council acting as the board of appeals shall flx a reasonable time-for the hearing of the appeal and
glve due notice thereof to- Interested parties ahd declde the same within a reasonable time.

g 10}2?!"4 7 ?0 I’M

aboub:blank . .
' II(IB of




(Ord, No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-83, - Cost,

The cost of the demolition, maling the bullding safe; or of malritaining the exteflor of the bullding or
structure or grounds adjoining-the bullding or structure, Incurred by the.city to bring the property Into
compliance with this article shall be relmbursed to:the city by the owher or party’ in interest jn.whose name
the property appears. ;

(Ord. No, 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Sec, 4-54, - Llen,

The owner or party In Interest in whose name:the property appears upon the last local tax assessment
records shall be notified by the assessor of the amount of the-costs.of tha demolition, making the: building
safe, or of malntaining the exterior of the bullding, striicture or'grounds adjolriing the bullding:er structure by
first class mall at the addrass.shown on the records, If the owner or partyin Interest failsto pay the costs
within 30 days after malling by the assessor of the notice'of the amount of the cost to the clty; the city-shall
hiave a lien for the cost Incurred to bring the property into conforrance with this article, The lien for the cost
shall be collected and treated In.the same manner as provided for property.ta llens under the General
Property Tax Act, Act:No, 206 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1893 (MCL 211, 1 etseq.), as amended.

(gm,,m.rm, §1,7-13-15)

-

.
Sec. 4-55, - Separate legal action; judgment.

In addition to other remedles under this article; the city may bring an actlon against the owner'of the
bullding or structure for the full cost of the demolition, of maklnﬁ the buildIng safe, or of maintaining the
exterlor of the bullding or structure or grounds adjoining the bullding or structure, The clty shall have alien
on the property for the amount of a Judgment obtained pursuant to thjs section. The llen provided for in this
sectlon shall not take effect untll notice of the lien Is filed or recorded as provided by law. '

(Ord, No. 421, § 1, 7-13-15)

Secs, 4-56—4-60, - Reserved,

aboul:blank 102224, 7:20 PM
2 PﬂﬂB gols




